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CHAPTER 1
PURPOSE

The purpose of this thesis is to make a study of the
women portrayed by Falacio Valdés in his novels. He char-
acterized them very well, and his novels reveal their habits
and customs in all social classes. He himself belonged to
the upper stratum of soclety, but there is evidence of his
sympathy for people of the lower classes. In fact, in lLa
espuma, Palacio Valdés openly criticized the 1life of the
social 8lite.

Palacioc Valdés used as subject matter for his novels
only those eonditions, regioms, and historiecal periods
familiar to him through first-hand experience. Thus the
women we encounter in his novels can be considered typiecal
of those of his day. Several of his novels, among them
Riverita and Maximina, K are allegedly autoblographleal.

Palacio Valdés had a high esteem for women, He
allowed them an important place in soclety, and in his
novels he did not push them intoc the background., According
to César Barja, all the women depicted in the novels of
ralacio Valdéa keep thelr true feminine nature, It 1s the

women, in faet, who give warmth and 1ife to his novels,!

logsar Barja, Libros y autores modernos (Los Angeles:
Campbell's Book Stere, 1933), p. 383.



Tarcughout this thesls, novels will be reviewed
featuring women in order to indicate the importance that
Palacio Valdés gave to womankind,
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CHAPTER I
LIFE AND WORKS OF DON ARMANDC PALACIO VALDES

Armando Franclseo Bonifaelo Falacio Valdés wes born on
October 4, 1853, in Entralgo of the Asturias, the most rugged
part of Spain., This enviromment was to have a great influ-
ence on the life and the ehosen profession of Palaclo Valdés,
Angel Cruz Rueda sald of the Asturles: "Estos valles, estas
montafias, estas costas fueron cantados en linda prosa castellana
por don Armando Palecio Valdés."

Palacio Valdés was born into a favorable soclal and
economic enviromment. He was the first of three sons of a
suceessful lawyer, 3Silverio Falacio Cérecaba, whose native
town was Oviedo. His mother, Eduarda Rodriguez Valdés, was
born in Emtralgo, but she always considered herself from
Avilés, a town on the Bay of Biscay. When Armando was three
years old, a second son, Anastesioc, was born to the family;

four years later Leopoldo was born.

Since the maeternal grandfather had died a few months
before his birth, Palacio Valdés knew only one grandfather,
don Franciseo Falacio Alonso, whom he grew to love and admire.

g&ngol Cruz Rueda, Armando Falacio Valdds; estudig
bioggggigg (Madrid: Agence mondiale de libraire, 1925),
. .



If anything hindered the carefree pleasure of don
Armando's childhood, 1%t was the fragile health of his mother,
In the words of Angel Crusz Buoda:3

Fué toda su vida un frégil cristal de Bohemia. ¥o
podia llamarse en verdad mujer a una criatura tan
débil, tan delicada y préxims a extinguirse que cuale-
quier réfaga de aire podia apagar en la hors menos
pensada.

The amusements that Palaclo Valdés enjoyed as a boy
were very normal for a child of his era. He readily adjusted
to the change from seashore activities to 1life in the moun-
tains, both of whieh he enjoyed immensely.

When Fzlacio Valdés was twelve years old, he went to
Oviedo, the capital city of the Asturias, to attend secondary
school., He stayed during that time in the home of his
paternal grandfather, that charming old gentleman of whom
Angel Cruz Rueda has saidslh

Entrd en este mundo allé por las postrimerias del
siglo XVIII; y cuando salid de &1 estaba en la creencia
de que habla existido en un nido de éngsles y no en una
cueva de bandidos, como pensaba Schopenhauer,

Don Armando seemed to enjoy the same cheerful ocutlock on
1ife as was enjoyed by his grandfather.

Young don Armando was almost immediately successful

in his studies at Oviedo, for after a month at the Instituto

31pid., . 13.
brpia., ». 17.



he was listed on the Cuadro de Honor, on which were found
the nemes of the most illustrious students of the Institute.
This greatly encouraged Armando in his school work. During
his third year in the secondary school, Palacio Valdés
started to associate with a group of young men who were a
fow years ahead of him in the academy. This essoclation had
a great influence on him, Among these young men was his
lifelong friend, Leopoldo Alas, who wrote under the name of
Clerin. From the time he was fifteen years of age, the
chief embition of don Armando was to cultivate phileosophical
and politieal sclences. This group of friends helped to
change his interest from social science and philosophy to
literature.

Palacio Valdds enjoyed school at Oviedo and was
saddened when he had finished his studies there. The first
of October, 1870, Just three days before his seventeenth
birthday, young Armando arrived in Madrid accompanled by his
father, There he enrolled in the study of law, Thils meant
that he must leave his boyhood home, the varied experiences
of mountains and seashore, and his beloved parents. He was
especlally touched at having to leave his mother, whose health
was rapldly falling., He felt as if he had besn expelled
from the Garden of Eden, The life of a large city did not
appeal to him, His own words on arriving in Madrid were,
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nAdi6s! (Ad18sl Ad&n salib del Pareiso." His unrest was
increased by the death of his mother in December, 1°7l.

Before he had finished his studies at the university,
Palacio Valdés entered the Ateneo, the famous literary and
soientific club of Madrid, Most of the older members of the
Ateneo looked with scorn upon the younger ones; but one of
the members, Luis Havarro, assoclated with the publishing
company, Medina y Navarro, discovered in a short time the
rhilosophical nature of don Armando Palacio Vald8s and
invited him to write some philosophical articles., This
association can be credited with starting Palacio Valdés on
a literary career, for when he finished his studlea at the
university at the age of twenty-one years, Luls Navarro
offered him a job writing for his dailly paper, El Cronista.
It was in this position that Palacio Valdés earned his first
money., Following his graduation, he continued to be an active
member of the Ateneo, He was secretary for the Secciln de

Clenciss Morales y Foliticos of the Ateneo from 1875 until

1878,
While he was assoclated with this group of literary

men in Madrid, Palaclo Vald8s distinguished himself by
writing for various philosophical and politieal publications.

SArnando Palacio Valdés, La novela de un novelista
(Medrid: Libreris de Victoriano Sufirez, 1921), p. 313.



His first real contribution to literature was a seriss of
humorous sketches of novellsts, roets, and orators for the
Revista Eurcpa, of which he was editor for three yeara. This
writing increased his Interest in literature. He was highly
criticel of the writing of his day. When he was a young man
he deecided that he could create quite as well as some of the
novellsts whose works were being published, He proved it

by launching into a career as a novelist and by being one of
the most popular authors ever to write Spanish literature,
Because of his early success, don Armando elected to abandon
‘the career of law, for whieh he had so carefully prepared,
and chose a career in literature,

In 1883 Palacio Valdés met Luisa Prendes when he was
in the coast town of Candfs, Asturias. The same year the
two were married, In 1885, at the age of eighteen, the
youthful wife died, survived by her husband and an infant
son, whom Palacio Valdls cherished, FPresent at his wife's

funeral were two of the most distinguished men of lettera of
his day: Pereda and Pérez Galdds.

In 1889 Palacic Valdés married a young lady from
Cadiz, Manolita Vela. There were no children from this
marriage., Palacio Valdés and his son Armandin were very
close to each other, so it was a great shock to don Armando

vhen he received word in 1919 that the son had been killed



in a motoreyele accident, Palacio Valdés was then left as
the guardian of two granddasughters on whom he bestowed all
his affection.

By the time he had reached his sixties, Palacio
Valdés was truly a world figure, His ideas concerning world
problems were highly esteemed., During the First World War
Palaclo Valdés was asked by the editors of El Imparcial to
give his views on the countries invelved in the great war,
This he did in a book entitled La guerra injusta. His opinion
about the conflict is evidenced in the title; he was not
nsutral, In the book he says: "Me inelind del lado de la
Francia; porque pens$, y sigo pensando, que la rezfn y la
justieia se encuentran de su parto.'6 This sympathy extended
to still another of the allled countries, England, of which

he had this to uy:T

Admiroc e Inglaterra como a ningfin otro pais del mundo.
Es agquel donde el hombre més respecta al hombre; por lo
tanto, el gue puede llamarse sin jectancia mfs civili-
zado. Pero Rusia, en cambio, es el més atrasado; no
habia, pues, motive para una ’declarada prororomia.

In spite of this sincere admiration, he never mastered the
English language. However, he did hire instructors to teach

English to his grenddaughters,

6Amndo Feleelo Valdés, La guerra injusta; cartas
de un espafiol (Barcelone: Bloud and Gay, 1917), p. 6.

7Ibid., Ps 1>



In the same book, showing his typical respect for
women, he entitled one chapter "Las mujeres y la guerra.”
In this chapter he mentioned the ecapability of women to
serve where they could in time of crisis, Some of his con-
temporaries were alarmed at what the economic result might
be 1f women were allowed to work in men's jobs, since women
were willing to work for lower wages. FPalacio Valdés main-
tained that 1t would mean only that men would have to live
more frugally if they were tc compete with vo-on.e

In 1920 Pelacio Valdés accepted a chair in the Royal
Spanish Academy, He had been elected to the academy in 1906

to £il1l1 the vacaney left by José Maria de Fereda. Because
of Palacio Valdés' high esteem for his good friend, he did
not accept the chair immediately.

In 1929 Leah R, Wagenheim interviewed this grest man
of letters for Hispania. She found him living on the
southern border of France at his summer home, Chfilet Martas
X Meria, named for one of his early novels, With him were
his wife and his two attractive granddaughters, Of the
interview Mlss Wagenhelm said, "Gradually we drifted into
a discussion of his novels, and as I have always admired his
women characters, I wanted to know if he had a favorite. He

B.Lm- » Do 1060
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He then expressed his preference for Rogella, the heroime of
Senta Rogelia."?

The interviewer expressed the thought that Palacio
Valdés was more libersl in his attitude toward women than
were many others of his day, He felt that women could
assume positions of great responsibility in the govermment,
She quoted him as saying, "Soy mis feminista que las mismas
gsefioras sufragistas de Inglaterra. FEllas no piden mfs gue
el voto; yo pildo toda la politica pasra la mujer y también
la sdministracibn de justicia."l® He certainly hed more
faith in the wisdom of women than might be expected of a
conservative of the early twentieth century.

In spite of the loss of several loved omnes, Palascilo
Valdés! long life appears to have been a rather happy one.
He led a simple life and enjoyed simple diversions, In his
younger days he kept himself fit with gymmestic exerclses
and learmed to fence., During his later 1life he liked to
take strolls in Madrid's Retiro park, which was one of his
favorite haunts, Palaclo Valdés was dotermined always to
run his 1ife according to a strict schedule, and many people
have said that one could set his wateh by the appearance of

9Leah R, Wagenheim, "A Chat with Armendo Palaelo
Veld8s on Feminism " Hispania, XII (November, 1929), p. Lh3.

IOI!E-. v. L46.
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don Armende in the Retiro., Another of Palacio Valdés!
favorite pasegs was Moncloa Park, also in Madrid. He even-
tuslly learned to feel at home in Madrid, end his life came
toc a close there in 1938,

Although Palacic Valdés departed from this 1ife over
tuenty years sgo, his works have made him immortal. He had
the good fortune to be born inte a family of sufficient
moans; therefore it was never necessary for him to write to
moet monetary needs. Ir addition to security, Palacio Valdés
inherited from his father an active imagination and = thirst
for education, This set of circumstances combined to form
one of the most popular novellsts Spaln has ever produced.
Hot pressed for money, Palaclo Valdds was enabled to write
purely for the love of writing, MNost of hils novels, however,
were financlal successes., Many of his works have been
translated into other languages. He tried to make his
novels examples of art., He portrayed life as he saw it,
and for this reason 1s considered s realist. According to
Ernest Mérimée, "He is melither an optimist nor a pessimist,
but a realist."ll In most of his novels he drew from
experiences in his own life, He treated human foibles

sufficiently sympathetically, but as e rule his steries

Ygrmest A, Mérimde, A History of Spanish Liters-
%%gg, translated, revised and enlarged by S. Griswold Morley
ew York: Holt, 1930), p. 55k.
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finish with a sense of retribution, especially for those
cheracters portrayed as being innately evil as was Méximeo of
Senta Rogella. He did not 1limit his studles to the sordid
and brutal aspects of 1life, so he eannot be placed In the
same school with many whe are considered complete realists,
Palaclo Valdés loocked for and found greatness in the lives
of aimple folk., He did not favor dwelling oo long on
details, He approved using details toc diseclose lmportant
threads of thought, but the prime feature of his novels was
characterization., e vested his characters with the power
tc carry the welght of the novels,

For most of his novels, Falacio Valdés drew his setting
from his native Asturias. He was skl1llful in pilcturing
realistically his own region, He wrote, toc, about his own
ora. He did not write historiecal novels, He based all of
nis writing on his own observetions,

He presented a picture eof 1life that contelns something
of sorrow and something of joy. Angel Valbuena Prat wrote,
"La novela de Valdfs es mfs pafio de légrimas que acilcate de
pasiones intensas,"12 Occasionally he interspersed his
narrative with a touech of humor that never distracts from

the story, Iils humor was never forced. Fralscic Valdés

12

Angel Valbuena prat, Historia de literstura
espafiola, Tomo II (Barcelona; Catedritico de 1a Universidad
de Barcelona, 1937), p. 829,
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scorned complicated plots, His skill lay in the abllity he
had in erresting interest by dealing with events simply. He
did not idealize the common life, but studied 1t closely in
order teo reveal the best that is in it. In only two of hils
novels was he accused of dealing too harshly with his sub-
jeets, La Fe was criticized as censuring the church, and Lg
Espume was an attsck on the upper stratum of soclety, In
La Aldes perdida Palaclc Valdés indicated his preference for
the pastoral life over the industrialized life being brought
into his country by sueh activities as mining,

Falacio Vald8s was assoclated rather early in 1ife
with a eareer in writing, Aubrey ¥, G, Bell wrotesl3
Don Armando Palaelo Valdés had been writing for
twelve years as & critie and story-teller when his

first novel of 1nst1ng success appeared in 1883 under
the title of This with La San

§yi%§g1§, rdida, is the wor on

wh his fame w111 nost loouro y rest,

He was never a bitter critic, end he wes gquite as stern with
himself ss he was with other authors; soon after the publi-
eation of his first novel, El sefiorito Cctavleo, he eriticized
it himself and made a second attempt at writing. The second
one, Marta y Marla, he viewed much more favorably. Marta y
Maria was his first novel to be transiated into another
language.,

13Aubroy F. G, Bell, Cent Spani Litoraturo
(New York: Alfred A, Knopf 1933), p. ; .
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In 1931, a helf century after the publicetion of his
first novel, Felacio Valdés published La novela de un
povelists, which gives us an insight into his first seven-
teen years.

From G8ser Barja we learn the extent of the work of
Faiacio Valdls, Some twenty-five volumes of novels and
stories constitute the literary production of Palaclo Valdés,
and it 1s the work of some fifty yeara, The epoch of his
ma jor productlvity corresponds to the years 1881 to 1900,
Puring these years he wrote a book approximately every
year. 14

His popularity spread even tc America. According to
Antén del Clmet and José do Torres Bermal:l®

Sabido es gque Pelacio Valdés goza de un enorme

prestigio en los Estados Unidos, La primera novela de
g&éA::.:g:t:u:n:;12:?dng:l-2%3535616%%§%§a;e:,:2n°16‘
Maximina, que en los Estados de la Uniln se vendieron,
son una prueba irrefutable,
This man of universal appeal made a vast impression on the
western hemisphere,

As a portrayer of women, Palacio Valdés 1s halled as
one of the most skillful, In many of his novels & woman is

lhsarja, op. eit., ». 385,

15iuis Antén del Olmet and J:si(do Torres Bernal,
8 grandes gsgg%o;og: Eslggig Valdés (Madrid: Imprenta de
%nmo’l 9.9-1-
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the main character. In others, such as Merta y Marla, women
charactors are contrasted. 1In A cara ¢ cruz the similarities
of two women are emphasized, He portrayed mature women with
ag great skill as he d1d the more youthful charmers, They
are not stereotyped; each has her own personality. He dis-
agreed with some of his contemporaries that women should
serve only in the home. In 1931 El gobierno de las mujeres
was published. In 1t Palacio Valdds evaluated the work of
such lmmortals as Isabella of Spain, Elizabeth of England,
Marguerite of Austria, and Vietoria of England.



CHAFTER III
WOMEN IDENTIFIED WITH RELIGION

Maria de Elorzs, one of the two main characters of
Marta y Maria, was the daughter of an engineer who was very
well thought of in the 1little town of Nieva, which closely
resembles the childhood home of the author's mother. In
the actual town, Avlilés, Paleclo Valdés spent much of his
boyhood. Maria was pattermed after Mary, ome of the two
sisters of Lazarus, whose account can be found in Luke X:
41=42: "And Jesus answered and sald unto her, Martha,
Martha, thou art careful and troubled about many things:

But one thing is needful: and Mary hath chosen that good
part, which shall not be taken eway from her." A4s the
reader progresses into the novel, there 1s doubt in his mind
that Palacic Valdés agreed that it was Mary who had chosen
the good part,

Taroughout the story Maria showed her preference for
things of the spirit rather than things of the world. She
was betrothed to Ricardo, marqués de Pefialte, but she treated
him with lack of consideration, She appeared to cutsiders
to be 1like a saint, but she persistently trampled on the '
feelings of those eclose to her, Although she appeared self-

less, she was actually using such means to attract attemntion
to herself,
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Even in her teens, Maria was directing her talents
and interests toward ethereal i1deals, Leaving the housework
and daily chores to her younger sister, who was more prac-
tical, Marie enjoyed reading Sir Walter Scott's stories and
other romantie novels, often confining herself to her room
for hours. Because of her insatiable thirst for reading,
she exhausted her friends' supply of books, 5She was greatly
influenced by the autoblography of Santa Teresa. She
enjoyed music because of the moods it expressed, Falaclo
Valdfs described her thus in the novol:16

La misica, en la cual habia hecho prodiglosos adelantes,
habla fomentado en su corazdn cierta tendencia a la
melancelia y al llanto. Llorsba por cualgquilsr cosaj
a veces sin motivo alguno y cuando menos se esperaba;
pero las légrimaes eran tan dulces y sentia con sllas
placer tan intenso, que en muchas ocasiones las pro-
vocaba con nrtirioio.
She was so easily moved to tears that often her parents were
concerned abecut her health,

Maria appeared to be a martyr in her affiligtion with
the Carlists, guerilla bands organized for the purpose of
placing don Carlos VII, pretender to the throne, at the head
of the Spanish government, Perhaps hor interest in the
movement was stimmleted because membera of the clergy cften

led the guerilla bands, and Maria was an ardent worker for

16Arnando Falacio Valdés, Marta y Maria (Madrid:
Libreria de Victorianoc Sufirez, i9 s Do a
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any ceuse supported by the chureh. She aided the Carlists
with money and munitions., She even tried to persuade
Ricerdo to risk his life in assisting the Carlists. OCne
night during a tertulia, scldiers arrested Marie for par-
ticipating in a Carlist revolution, She was taken before
a Consejo de Guerra. She confessed her guilt, but out of
respect to her father the authorities pardonsd her.

Since her novio had no femily of his own, he went to
the Elorza famlly for companionship and became beloved by
the family. VYhen Maris revealed that she did not intend to
marry Ricardo, her mother grieved so greatly that she dled
shortly afterward, Marla then asked her father for permis-
sion to becoms a pnun, Knowing hls dauchter's determination,
the father did not resist but gave his ccnsent, Her
renouncing marriege to assume a mors secrificial 1ife in a
convent evoked sympathy and admiration from acquaintances,
but all the tims Palacio Veldds gave the impression that
this selfish horoine was enjoying the attention aroused by
such behavior,

In contrast to Maria, who renounced the 1life of the
world for 1life in & convent, Gloria Bermfidez, of La hermana
San Sulpiecio, loathed the 1ife of 2 nun. When she was very
young, Gloria, with her cousin, 1z hermena Maris de la Luz,
had been placed in a convent in Andalueia, Gloria's religious

name was hermana San Sulpicic. Gloria was in the convent at
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the wish of her mother and not from choice, The two cousins
wers guite different in temperament. Hermana Merla was
docile and obeyed the regulations of the convent, G&loria
proved to be an incorrigible chargs for her superiors.

Sanjurjo, a handsome doctor from the iAsturias, had
been assigned to the convent to care for an elderly, ailing
nun., 3anjurjo became rather well acguainted with the nuns,

especlally the hermans San Sulpielo and her cousin, the

hermana Maria de le lus, The hermans San Sulpicio behaved
in a manner quite unigue in a convent end, with her inde-
pendent spirit, she soon won the admiration and affection of
Sanjurjo., By confessing that she was élasatisfled and did
not intend to take her finel vows, she aroused hope in
Sanjurjo that he might someday be her sultor, She revealed
to Sanjurjo her secular name, She asked him to bring her a
copy of a book popular 2t that time, The book she wanted
was Maximina K written by Palacio Valdés. It was necessary
for her to get permission before reading 1t; but, whether
she received permission or not, she intended tc read the
novel and perhaps be punished for it., The hermana San
Sulpiclo was soc accustomed to chastisement that she grew to
accept it 28 a matter of course.

Although she had not yot taken her final vows, the
hermans San Sulpicio eventually finished her training and

went to Seville tc teach in a school there, Sanjurjo, as
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might be expected, located her almost immediately in Seville.
In hopes of releasing the hermana San Sulpieio, or Gloria,
a3 he now called her, Sanjurjo eppeared before her superior
and explalned that she had no ecclesiastical lecanings butb
that she had been coerced into beseoming a nun., The superior
was furlious and ordered Sanjurjo from the room, Again the
unfortunate nun, innocent in this case, received punishment,
Senjurjo wrote to one of his uncles who was wealthy and
quite influential in the church, He told his uncle of the
rlight. ¥hen the superiocr learned of Sanjurjo's connec-
tions, he offered tc do anythinz he could to help Sanjurlo
gain the young nun's release,

For a time the two levers did net try to meet in
peracn, but they contacted each other by means of notes
through Paca, a servant, Eventually the two were daring
enough to meet at night occesiomnally, During one of their
entrevistas, Gloria teld Sanjurjo that she could not requite
nis love, His disappointment is described in his own words
in the novelsl7

Me es imposible definir el estado de mi espiritu

al oir estas palabras. Fueron pronunciados en un tonillo
irénico que podla hacer creer que se trataba de uns

broma; pero 108 razonamientos eran tan verosimiles y
18gicos, gque destrulan tal suposicibn.

17 :
Armendo Palacio Valdés hermans §g;gigig
(Madrid: Libreria de Viotoriano’é%%ros, 1920), p. 100.
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He showed so much grief at hearing the news that she {inally
relented and agreed thet they would continue their romance.

~ One day Paca arrived at the imm in which Senjurjo was
staying and told him that Gloria had been kidnaped, Her
mother, dofia Tule, had ordered her return to the convent,
Senjurje overtock the captors, end at gun-polnt, the kid-
napers released her, WNow that Gloria was free, Sanjurjo
would have married her, but she was not of age and could not
parry without asr motherts consent,

Sanjurjc went to the home of dofia Tula to ask for
Glorla's hand, Tula would have consented, but the director
of her estate, realizing that Glorla was to imherit a great
sum of monsey, accused Sanjurje of being a fortune hunter and
influenced the mother to withhold her consent, In time the
director was convinced of Sanjurjo's sincerity, end he and
dofia Tula consented to the marrisage.

Gloria was at last happy in a life so different from
her past experience., The couple, after their marriege, toock
an extensive wedding trir into France. On their return to
Spaln, they visited the convent in which they had met.
Gloria was delighted to be merely a spectatdédr and not a
participant in sserificial living.

Different from either of the women already dilscussed
is Rogelia of Santa Rogelia. Rogelia's behavior ren the

garut of morals from the most censurable to the most sailntly.



ey sin was far more shocking than any action of her
forerunners, but her sincerity and penance wers superior to
these traits in either of the women of the former novels,

In the face of bitter discouragements, Rogella bravely per-
sisted in her effort to mend her broken 1life, Although she
was only a ley Christlan, Rogella's act of faith was eguiva-
lent to that of anyone taking formal vows,

Rogelia lost both of her parents when she was very
young, 8c she made hor home with her elderly grandmother,
The two lived very meagerly on the small salary that Rogellia
earned by working at the mines,

Life at the mines wes not desirable for an attractive
young lady who should be considering prospective husbands,
Rogelie had many suitors but none guite sc persistent as
Mdximo, a former prisoner who worked at the mines,

Nc one was quite certain why it was that Rogelia
eventually accepted Méximo's proposal of marriage. ie was
conslderably older than Rogelia, He was certainly not
handsome, IHis manner was gruff, He was hated by his asso-
clates, However, he off'ered more wealth to Rogella than
most of the miners, Because of his strength, he eould work
faster and thus earn more money than any of the other miners.

In the words of Falacio Valdés:la

18
Armando Palaclo Valdfs, Santa Rogselia from QObras
escogidas (Madrid: M, Aguilar, 1933), : p—QH 396. Rl
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Este MAximo, de quien se hablasba, era una plaga que

habla caldo sobre aquella regibn, ﬁajo de estatura
pero de fuersas sorprendentes, antiguo minero,
habilisimo come tal, ganando doble que 108 demis
porque pleaba en un dia mis carbén gque los otros en
trea, agresive, pendenclero, presto de esgrimir el
cuchillo en eutlquier ocasidn, licenciado de presidioe,
seglin se decla, habia logrado inspirar terror en la
comarea, Sus ooupanorou le odisban y le temian,
Faseba un poco de los treinta afios, La belleza de
Rogelia, que tenla muchos golosos, le sedujo.

This was the man whom Rogelia married.

Although Méximo treated Rogelia tenderly before their
marriage, after their marriage he felt there was no further
need to woo her, and he showed her very little considera-
tion., Often he beat her. Rogellis was miserable, but she
congigned herself to her fate and to her husbend's abuses.

This treatment incensed Rogelia's friends, and one
night one of her former suitors attacked Méximo with the
intention of killing him, In this encounter Méximo's great
strength saved his 11ife,

¥éximo was taken home to his wife, -She cared for him
patiently. Sines 1t was apparent that a doctor must be
summoned, Hogelia set out to bring a doctor from a noigh-
boring town, She made the trip on foot at night over
dangerous terrain, She went to the home of-a Dr. Vilches,
who after much persuasion consented to aceompany Rogelia
back to her ausband to administer the immediate treatment

necessary.
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Dr., Vilches was the exact opposite of M&ximo. The
doctor was handsome, greceful, end eonsiderate, He dressed
neatly and enjoyed fine furnishings in his living quarters.
It 1s no vonder thet MNAximo seemed more crude than sver to
Rogelia, During the course of Méximo's 1llness, the doctor
mede several eslls at the house, The doctor, with his
sympathetic manner, fell in love with Miximo's beautiful
young wife, whe deserved a better 1ife than fortune had
bestowad upon her,

Dr, Vilches was planning te go to France to continue
his medicel studies. After Méximo recoversd from his wounds,
Rogelia and Dr, Vilches went together to France, Rogslia
lived as the common-law wife of Dr, Vilches, Bégolia had no
training in fipnesse and no education, so the doctor spent a
great deal of money making a ledy of her and training her to
live in upper-class soclety, She was an adept student and
guickly adapted %o the change in her life, It was during
their stay in Frence that a son weas born to them.

Dr, Vilches completed his studies, and the three
returned to Spain, Rogelis had been very happy in France,
but now that they were back in Spain she wes afraid that
someone might recognize her, In order to avoid meeting
people, she refralned from being seen cutside their home.
She began to be apprehensive about living as a common-law
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wife, but now that she had a son, she hesitated to change
hor atatus.

Rogelia and Dr, Vilches were staying at the home of
an old duke, The duke had a daughter, Oristobalina, who had
become a nun, Cristobalina came to visit her father snd
became ascgualnted with Rogelia, WNot knowing of Rogella's
erratic life, Cristobalina spoke cut very effectively
against such evils, Rogelia became aware of her ain,

DPr., Vilches and Hogelis had received word that Miximo
had 'urdered a man and had been sent to Ceuta, a prison town
in Africa, Rogelia's consciencs had been awakened, and she
could not help thinking of her legal husband,

Finally she was overcoms by her feeling; and, in the
middle of the night, she left Dr. Vilches and thelr son to
join her rightful husband. Rogelia had become accustomed
to the life of a lady, but when she arrived in Ceuta, the
only way she could support herself waa by doing manual
lasbor, She did washings end ironings and worked in an inn,
Her employer in the inn was kind to her and realized that
Rogelie had not been in the habit of working sc hard, She
tried to persuade Rogelia not to call on Miximo, who was
feared by all who knew him, Nevertheless Rogelia made
frequent visits to the prison to see Wéximo, The guards at

the prison tried to discourage Rogelia from her endeaver,



but she insisted that she owed Méximo her devotion, 3he
felt dseply penitent for the injustice she aad done him,

Naturally Méximo was not receptive to visiis from the
wife who had left him, He insisted that he did not wlsh to
ses her, and she had to force her presence upon him, Hiximo,
alweys of a cruel disposition, resented Rogella's former
behavior and was very unkind to her, OCnee in 2 fit of anger
he beat her sc badly that she had to be taeken to & hospltal,
After she recovered and was dismissed from the hospltal, she
stopped at a chureh to pray. Life had become almest
unbearable, but she accepted her affiictions as the cross
she mmust bear for her past sins, Following the prayer she
offered, she heard Christ say to her that she had done
sufficient penance and that her sins had been forgiven, She
felt some comfort in the thought that she had paid for her
transgressions, Soon efterward she learned that Mé&ximo had
committed suicide,

At last she was released from her first marriege.
While she was away, she had been very anxious about her son
and the doector, so she immediately returned to them in
Spain, fer task was finished, Her consclence was abt ecase.
She could now enjoy the son from whom she had been separated
s¢ long.

As for bringing any joy to Méximo, Rogelia's orforfs
had been in wvain, It soems a vary‘foolish thing to leave
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the doctor after there was a child toc be cared for, but by
giving up her comfortsble 1ife with the dootor, Regelia found
reace in her heart,

Cbdulia Orsuns of La fe might be compared to Maria
of Marts y Maris in that cutwardly she was respected ard was
considered quite religieue, but inwardly she was selfish and
scheming. 3She wes different from Maria in that she was not
devoted to any cause, She was much more self-centered than
Meris was, and she had less consideration for those who
cared for her, Marla simply rejected her suitor to enter a
convent, but Obdulia had the man she loved committed to
eizht years of nrison becsuse he did not shere her feelings.

Obdulle waz the only child of 2 widower, Orsunms,
Orzuna was the administrator of the estate of Montesinos, a
wealthy men and an athelst, Cbdulia was a charming girl
and was very conaiderate of her father. Her fether showered
her with attention because during much of her life she
suffered from poor health, She attended church falthfully
and appeared to lead an exemplary 1life,

One day & young priest, the padre @11, moved into the
village of Pefiascosa, in whiech Obdulis lived, He was popular
with the villagers, esreclally with the women, Obdulis
became even more interested in religion, She &rprcached the
padre Gil and told him that she wanted to enter a convent
but that her father objJected. The priest suggested that she
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enter an Augustinian convent in Lancia, but she said that
she preferred cne in Castile called Astudillo., DBecause she
would have to make such a long journey, the pedre G1l offerad
to accompany her to the éonvent.

The padre Gll was an intellligent young man with
interests even cutside the schurcih, le borrowed litserature
from the sgnostie Montesinos, Some of the things he read
czaused him to wonder about certair beliefs hsld by the
clorgy. He confessed some of these doubts tc his fellow
priests, who were disappointed to think that he allowed such
thoughts to cross his mind, They began tc question his
werth as a priest,

Obdulis meanwhile continued preparaticns for her
Journey with the paére Gil, The ltinerary wes planned, and
they began thelr journey early one morming. B2efore they
reached the conmvent, Ubdulla said that there was something
she must confess to the padre. The young priest asked her
if she wanted to wait until they resched a church sc that
she could confess rroperly. She said that 1t would not be
necessary and admitted to him that she wes not interested
in entering a convent., She said that her father had not
objected to her intentlons because she had never mentioned
them to him, The priest was very mueh surprised and esked
why they were making the trip, It was then that she pro-
fesaed her love for him and told him that she had invented



——_

29
the ruse tc be alone with him, He was guite upset &t
hearing this and was unsasy about how he should handlie the
matter,

Obduliz pretendéd to be sick, so as soon as thay
reached & town, the padre G1l took her to an imn to rest,
She asked for something to drink, The priest went after
it, When he returned he found Obdulia out of bed; she had
fallen on the floor, He picked her up, and as he was sarry-
ing her baek %o bed, someone knocked at the door. Orsuna
and two other men hed followed the counle and had finelly
caught up with them., When hner father and his companions
opened the door and discovered Obdulia with the priest, they
wore quite shoeked snd without hearing the circumstances
accused the prlest of dishonorable intentions.

Ubdulia's father took her home, and the priest
returned to nis residence. Obdulila exonerated the padre
Gil by telling her father that the whole affalr was her
fault and that the priest had behaved guite respectsbly.

She stlll could not resign herself to the fact that the
priest was not romantically interested in her. She went to
his parish house and without permission from dofia Elolss,
the nousekeeper, entered the priest's room, Huch to the
esusement of Eloiss, the padre G11 immediately put her ocut.

Obdulia wes 8o enrsged that she went to her father
and told him that tha padre Gil had maede romentie advances
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to her, Her father had the unfortunate prlest arrested.
The only witness to (Obdulia's last visit to the priest wes
the housekeeper, Sne tostiflied om behalf of the padre, but
Cbdulis denied the statements of Slolsa., Obdulia told a very
convincling story. 3he was supported in incriminatine the
prieat by other priests who knew that he was 1nnocent but
who disliked his liberal views on religion., The doclle
clergymen made no greet effort to defend himself and was
sentencsd to eight years in prison, The wvengeful Cbdulia
ir her frenzy had succesded in making the padre G1l suffer
for rejlesting har levo.' During nis stay in prison Gil
becaxe mors devoted in his religion but lost a great deal
of respect for the clergy.

Among the women in the novels of Palacio Valdés
assoclated with religlion there are varying degrees of devo-
tion, Obdulie proved to be quite insincere, but she always
menaged Lo convince others of her religious ardor, Actually
she had 1ittle real religlous convietion,

Maria and Rogelia wore exitremes in religion. Ome who
was mors moderate in hor religlon was Gloria, She was not
devoted to the monastic 1ife into which she had been plaeced.
Gloria was well schooled im religious rites, but she failed
to sccept them as the only way to a good 1ife. She was not
irpreligicus, and the fact that she wanted to go back to

vigit the convent is evidence that it wss nct too unpleasant
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to her, However vhen the oppeortunity arose to lead a life
including more nleasures, she chese the less suerificiel way.

Religion waz rether lmportant to Palacio Valdbs, dut
he insisted on thinking out some of the belisfs of religion
for nimself., He did not oriticize the holy life, but ks
approved the velue of a falth that was sot so ostentatious,
The women assoclated with religion in his novels bear thls
out,



CHAPTER IV
YOUNG, MARRIAGEABLE WOMEN

A young lady uﬁo was overshadowed by her older sister
was Marta of Marta y Haria. Marta was not so talented as
her older sister, Maria, but she was more sincere. Falacio
Valdés showed his preference for Marta by rlacing her name
first in the title, whereas we usually find their Biblical
counterparts spoken of in the reverse order., Marta was not
interested in making a show of her religilon, as was her
sister; rathor her religion was to serve those ¢lose to her
end to make them comfortable,

Since chlldhood Marta had been accustomed to shrinking
from the foreground when in the presenmce of her sister, When
Maria's fiane$, Ricardo, cslled on the family, it was Marta's
duty to see that the house was in corder, She was skilled in
the culinary arts and often favored family and guests with
her creations, This type of practicality was considered
inferior to her sister's musical ability.

Because Rlcardo was so close to the Elorza family,
Marta grew to admire him a great deal, She.was sympathetie
toward him when she observed Maria's lack of consideration
for him. Ricardo was fond of Marta, but it had never occurred
to him to eonsider her anything but his future sister-in-law.



33

Don Mariano, father of the girls, owned a small 1sland
on whiech he often entertained friends. At one such enter-
tainment Rlcardo and Marta found themselves seated next to
each other at the meal. Because of Ricardo's coaxing, Marta
had teken three glasses of champsgne. She was not accustomed
to aleochol, and soon she Was overcome by a feeling of suffo-
cation, While the others were daencing, Marta and Rieardo
went down to the seashore. Marta induced Rieardo to explore
some of the ccast terrain with her, Marta bravely and
foolishly strayed too far out on a small peninsula when the
tide came in completely surrounding the two with water.
Meanwhille the group at the party hed missed the pair, and
don Mariano had sent a searehing party to find them, In the
meantime Ricardo had managed to escape and to help Marta out
of danger and back to the others, Not wanting to be near
the sea at night, the party soon got into boats and headed
homeward. It 1s hard to know what was in the mind of Marta,
but she gazed into the sea and was spellbound by it. To
the surprise of all Marta hurled herself into the water,
Ricardo was an exeellent swimmer and was immediately in the
water to rescues her. The rescue was successful, and soon
everyone arrived at his destination.

Maria had not engaeged in the festivities but was, as
usual, enjoying solitude, The mother, dofia Gertrudls, was

never in good health and died soon after the excursion. The
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family was greatly saddened by her death, Don Marlano and
Marta grieved greatly, and Maris became even more detached
from the world and interested in the spiritual 1life, She
asked her father for his permission to enter a convent. He
hesitated toc enswer but finally consented, Maria wrote to
Ricardo telling him of her decision,

Ricardo felt the blow wery keenly and resolved teo
leave his home in Nieva, He went to the homs of don Mariano,
still his closest friend, to bid him farewell, Marta was
silent during most of the visit as don Mariano tried to
persuade Ricardo to stay. Ricardc was sorry to leave, but
he felt so alone in the little town after having been
rejected by his sweethesrt that he did not feel that he
could remain in the neighborhood. That night Ricardo dreamed
that Maria was being married not to Christ, but to the town
ruffian, Eventually the dreem included Marts, and she
declared her love for him, The dream drove Ricardo to go
another time to the Elorza home, This time he asked Marta
te marry him, Don Marlano and Marta were delighted not to
have Ricardo leave them, Marta eccepted Ricardo's proposal,
and Riecardo realized that Marta was s much better wife than
Maria couléd have been,

One of the most humble of the women in the novels of
Falaelo Valdés is Maximins, the heroine of two novels,
Riverita end Maximina. In the book Riverita, Maximina was
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an orphan girl who lived with her aunt and uncle and worked
for them in the hotel they mensged, Because of her pesi-
ticn, she was rldiculed by the people of Pasages, the little
seacoast town in which she lived, ier aunt and her uncle
thought that because they allowed her a place to live and an
opnortunity to carn her way they were being very kind tc her;
however, even their children teased Maximina and considered
her inferior to themselves, Because her sunt and uncle were
too poor te offer a dowry to anyone to marry her, she con-
sidered entering a convent,

One day there arrived in Pasages a young lawyer,
Miguel, the son of the brigadier Rivera, He Iimmediately
noticed Maximine and asked the proprietress of the hotel,
Maximina's aunt, about her. He diseccvered that she was an
orphen eand that her only hope for the future lay in her
entering a eonvent. The sunt thousght that Maximina was not
beautiful enough to attract a husband unless the femily ecould
offer a dowry. Miguel felt that Maximina had been grossly
underrated, Although Miguel d1d not consider her beautiful,
he was attrnofod to her. Early in their aecquaintance, her

appearance was described thus: 19

19srmando Palacio Valdés, Riverita (Madrid: Libreris

de Victoriano Sufrez, 1922), p. .
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Era una morens mis pflida que sonrosada, la nariz
pequefia, la boea freseca, la cabeza y la frente muy bien
modeladas, el cabello castafio y los ojos garzos, ni
grandes nl pequefios, mfis baja que alta, apretadita de
carnes y aebultada de formas, revelando en sus movimi-
entos un gran vigor muscular, HNadle peodia llemar
hermosa a esta muchacha con justieia, y sin embsrgo, la
expresibén humilde e inocente de sus ojos, lu sonrisa
constante que contraria sus lasbios la haclan altamente
simpftica.

Scon after thelr meeting Miguel showed more interest
in Maximina then he did in the other girls of the vlllage,
Since Maximina had never been considered very attractive,
the other girls of the town told her that Miguel was not
sincere in his attentions to her and that soon he would leave
and forget abcut her, Maximina was disturbed by these remarks
end asked Miguel if he really did care for her,

Miguel assured Maximina that he loved her, but scon
he had to return to Madrid to accent 2 position as neolitieal
editor of a newspaper., When he announced to Maximins his
intentions of leaving, she feared that what the girls had
warned her about was true, As a parting gift she gave Miguel
a erucifix, and she asked him to wear it to remember her.

From Madrld Miguel sent a telegram to Maximina, He
waited anxiocusly for her reply. He had written to his
sister, Julla, that he was in love with Maximina, but Julia
d1id not think that he was sincere about it until she ncticed

how eagerly he corresponded with Maximina.
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In one letter to Miguel, Maximima sent a pilcture of
herself, Miguel, fearing that Julia might not consider
Maximina pretty enough, was reluctant to show his sister the
picture, When Julis finally did see the plecture, she was
plsased with the girl,

As time went on and the lovers had been separated for
a considerable length of time, Julie sensed that Miguel had
become lax in his corresponding with Maximina, and she spoke
to him about 1t, Actually he felt guilty about his sctions
but tried teo cover them up by saying he did not wish to con-
tinue the romance and gave several reasons for not wanting
to marry. Julia felt sorry for Maximina and urged Miguel
not to hurt her feelingsa, _

The paper for which Miguel wrote was La Independencia,
a liberal paper, There was an opposing publication in
Madrid, La Mo uia, which was very conservative. The two
papers constantly made attacks on each other's views, These
polemics became quite sharp, but Miguel wrote with suech
diplomacy that no one could be offended by his remarks,
Once after he had written his column and had given it to the
editor, the editor took the liberty of changing some of the
romarks, The views, which had been handled rather judicilously
by Miguel, now beceme an affront to the opposing faction.
The editor of Le Monarquia demsnded e duel with the politi-

cal editor of La Independencia.
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Miguel ccnsented to the duel and was seriously injured.
He was cared for by the loving Julia, who obeyed his
slightest whim, Julia toock it upon herself toc write to
Maximine and asik her to come to Madrid, While he was bed-
faest, Miguel had time to think, and his thoughts repeatedly
centered arcund Maximina, Eventually he requested that
Julia write to her. He wanted Julia tc ask Maximina to for-
give him for his negleot and to ask her to become his wife
if he survived his injuries, Julia left the room to write
the letter and was not gone two minutes when she ceslled to
Miguel that the letter had been sent end that the reply had
already arrived. Miguel was very much surprised to ses
Maximina entering the room, He proposed to Maximins; she
accepted. As soon as he recovered, he went to Pasages and
they were married,

The story of Maximina and Miguel is continued in the
novel Maximina K the account of their married 1life,

At first the young couple went to live with Miguel's
sister and step-mother, Julle and Angelita., Maximina was
unhappy there, so Miguel took his wife to = house of her own.
It was there that thelr son was born,

Julia fell in love with her ccusin, a very undesirable
person, but one who was very attractive to women., Miguel
had to leave his home for a while to Influence Julia to

renounce her lover, This and his work kept him often away
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from home, Miguel was given a politieal position that took
him to Serin some miles from Madrid, ©On one of his trips he
requested that his wife and his son go with him, Meximina
was overjoyed at the prospect., While she was away from home,
Maximina contracted a serious illness and died, The bock
onds in a rather sad mood., Migusl felt that he was fortunate
to have his son in his time of sorrow, The child gave him
the courage tc continue living, This part is autobiographi-
cal in that 1t wes based on Falacic Valdés' own short marrisge,
that had a similar ending.

A charming girl who lived in 2 fishing community of
the Asturias was Elisa, sweetheart of Jos&, the chilef char-
acter in the book of the same name, José was rugged,
handsome, and capable of hard work on a fishing vessel, but
e had always been too timid to eppreaech the lovely Elisa
until his fellow sallors encouraged him, They insisted that
the two would make an ideal courle, Jos& wes zttracted to
Elisa because she was considered the most beautiful giri in
the village., Ellsa was equally attracted to Jos8d, In view
of this rutual sdmiration, it would eppear that the two would
find nothing in the way of their happiness, but they hed
thelr obstacles. The diffieulty lay in the dispositions of
the mothers of Jos$ and Ellsa, The unfortunste Ellsa was
the victim of her mother's whims,
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Teresa, the mother of Jos8, oprosed the romance not
because she disliked Elisa but because she was involved in
a long-standing personal feud with Isabel, Elisa's mother.
Teresa insisted to Josd that if he should marry Ellse, she,
Teresa would be the laughing-stock of the town,

Jos® was not the only young men who pursued Elisa.
The town idiet, Rufo, a young man of about twenty years,
also had_hapcs of winning Elisea, He was encouraged by citi-
zens of the town, who urged him on for their own sport; by
Elisats mother, wao d1d so to meke José appear ridiculous;
end by Elisa's cwn charming iannar.

After Elisa and Josd had made plans to be married,
dofia Isabel set about to stop the wedding, By telling Rufo
that she preferred him to José as a son-in-law, she helght-
ened Rufo's hopes and kindled his anger against José,

Josd had twe ships, but he relied on the newer one
to earn his living. Rufo knew that without the newer ship
Jos® would be unsble to support Elisa and they cculd not be
married. Issbel led Rufo to believe that 1f he could sue~-
ceed In halting the wedding, he could claim Elise as hils
bride., With this in his mind, Rufo loosed José&'s newer boat
from its mooring and caused 1%t to be lost in the sea, Isabel,
quite aware of how the boat happened to become lost, joined
the others in commlserating with José&, but Teresa was not so

ecsily decelved as Jos&, and she suspected that Isabel had
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something to do with the disaster. This susplcion aggravated
the 111 will between the two women, An investigation took
place. Rufo was found guillty end was committed tec an insti-
tution,

A cabellero of the Asturias was don Fernando de la
Meira, an o014 gentlemsn who had come from a famlly of some
means, but ths family fortuns had dwindled until there was
very little left for don Fernando, the last remaining member
of the family. Thus he had toc find sustenance us best he
could, Because he had sc few elothes, it was necessary for
him to 2o out at night to find food, Dofia Isabel had a
prolifliec garden, and don Fernando at times entered the garden
to gather food, He exeused himself by insistinz that it was
e matter of 1ife or death. Cne night, on entering the
parden, he was surprised to find another person smong the
shadows, Teo hils surprise it was Jos8, but he ecould not
determine why, for it was belleved in the community that
relations between Ellsa and José had been terminated since
the battle between their mothers over the loss of José's
boat, Don Fermandc continued to watoh José as he signaled
Elisa to join him, Very soon Elisa was in the garden, To
escape notice, don Fernando climbed a tree, Soon a shower
oceurred, end José and Elisa sought shelter beneath the very
tree in which don Fernando was hilding, Thus the old gentleman
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was able to hear the conversation of the lovers and to dlscover
that their plans for marriage were being thwarted by José's
financial situation after the less of his boat and by the
objections of Ellsa's mother.

Following this night don Fermenic thought about the
incident considerably. He could not rest easy until he had
done everythinz in his power to help the lovers, He had
nothing in the way of matsrial goods except his house,

Making the supreme sacrifice, he sold hils house teo be turned
into & fectory for canning fish, With the money he bought
Jos8 e new boat and asked the youth to help him wilth e task.
Prom over his door he took down the family coat-of-arms,

that hed been there for many generations, He and José took
the heavy burden, which don Fernando had hildden in a sack,

out to the sea, Thaere he told José what it was he had
brought, end they buried the last symbol of the Meira ncbility
in the ocean, ;

The replacing of his boat solved half of the probiem
of making Elisa his wife, but José 3till could not get the
consent of Issbel, Since Elisa was not of age, Isabel's
econsent was imperative., Here again don Fernando offered his
help., If Elisa should live for a length of time with socmeone
other thaen her mother as guardlan, she could marry without
her mother's consent, Don Fernandco secured a guardien, The
person engaged for this duty was 11]1 tempered, and Elisa at
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times was tempted to return to her mother and to ask
forgiveness, She was sustained only by José's gentle
attention and econcern. The time arrived when Jos8 had to
return to the sea for a season of fishing, Elisa was very
lonely, but she remained firm ir her decision to walt for
his return, She was further grieved at the news of the
death of their benefastor, don Fernando,

Elisa waited patiently for the return of her betrothed.
Eventually the time came for the return of the fishing
veesels, but a storm had occurred on the sea, teking the
lives of meny fishermen. The citizens of the town crowded
the shores to walt for and perhsns welcome some survivors,
After many weary hours of waiting, they lost hope and returned
home or went to the church to pray. In time nsws arrived
that a boat had been spotted, Again hope sprang up among
the citizens, Again they thronged to the seaside; Elisa
hoped, despaired, and hoped again with the others, With her
new guardlan she ran to the shore, After a length of time
she saew José among those disembarking, She ran to him, and
they, forgetting for a moment the sorrows of those whose
loved ones had been lost, hurried to the church to give
thanks that they had been reunited, The final words of the
novel indicete their future plans: "Bajaron emparsjados la
calzada del pueblo, dejando sefialado, antes de lleger a
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casa, ¢l dla de su boda,"20 Thus it was that Ellsa was

succeszful in plenning her own future and her own happiness,

Two girls who must be treated in the same section are
Angelita and Fermandita, identicel twins who were the first
and second wives respectively of Jullo Seamper, Julilo's
method of deelding whieh girl he should marry leéd to the
titles of the book, A cura o ecruz, In which the girls play
egquivalent roles,

Julio met the girls becsuse of = favor he was per-
forwing for the gir;l' brother-in-law, Jullo lived next
door tc the brother-in-law, don Macrino Sslcedo, a very
large man, Macrino's wife, dofia Rosario, wes = very small
lady wno 1n spite of her size was 2 scolding, nagging wife
who dominated her husband,

Cne dey Julio and Macrino had gone to e Madrid
amusemert park, the Bombilla. While they were there,
Macrino saw a very beautiful young lady and asked her to
dence with him, The lady's husband was enraged, and a fight
ensued, Jullo was vory much embarrassed to see Macrino
Involved in a fight, so he took him home,

The next day as Julio was passing Maorino's house,

he heard soreams, e asked if someone there was msd., Rosario

2°Arnnndo Palaclo Valdés,K Jos# (Madrid: Libreris

general de Vietoriano Sufires, 1921), p. 235.
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answered thet her husband had lost his mind. Jullc and
another passer-by summoned a carriage and helped Macrino off
to the hospital from which he was taken to an asylum., Jullo
then went into the house to comfort Rosario, and she related
the events of the night before, Rosario told the atory
guite celmly., Macrino, after he had returned home, hed
refused to eat but went straight to his bedroom. During the
night be rose from his bed and reaturmed to it several times,
Finally he walked out into the garden., Roseric went efter
him, ordered him into the houss, and forced him to eat some-
thing. Rosarle asked him what was the matter, but Mecrino
found it 4ifficult to speak., He got us from the table and
vent again into the garden, Rosario then loecked him ocut of
ths house, When he discoversd that he had been shut out, he
started the commotion that had attracted Julio's attentilon.

(ne day after Julio was confident that Macrimo was
safely irstalled in an institution, he was surprised te look
up from his work and find Macrine standing in the room, At
first Jullec wes very much startled and frightened, but
Macrino assured him that although he had been demented, he
was now perfectly sane, and he had brought § psper signed by
the doctor to prove it, He had come to Julio for help.
Rosario hed left him and hed gone to live at the home of her
sisters, Macrino went toc bring her home, but she refused

to talk te him, When he wrote to her, she returned his
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letters unopened, He had even sent messengers without
suceceoding in encouraging her tc return home, In despera-
tion Macrino had come te Jullo to ask him to go to Resario
with some poems he had written for her, because he thought
thet Julio eould read them very winningly.

Julioc went to the fiftheflocr spartment of the sisters
end found everything there as dimirutive as the furnishings
in Rosario's own home, Jullo felt as If he were Gulliver in
Lilliput,

It was there thaet he {irst saw the twin sisters of
Roserlo, as dalnty as she wes but ycunger and more beautiful.
They were very much alike in looks and in tempsrament; both
were very attractive and very pleasant, Julic immedlately
felt their friendliness, He sensed that they were in sym-
rathy with poor Macrino, for as soon as they learned that
Maerino had sent him, he was made to feel gquite welcome,
Julio gathered from the conversation that Macrine hed previ-
ously been in iove with Fernandita, and he felt that Macrino's
taste was extremely poor to have rejsetod her for Rosarie,
The twipns flattered Jullec by remerking that their brother-
in-law had spoken eiten and very highly of Julic and that he
considered hils neighbor wise. Julic could not resist glancing
inte the mirror to see 1f he had the appesrance of 2 wise

man, He asked what brilliant thing he had done. They
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answered that his writing for periodicals gave him that
distinetion.

When Rosario entercd the room, it was evlident that
she wes a8 offlclous with her sisters ss she was with her
husband, She very coldly asked Julio his busineas, When he
sald that her husband had sent him, she Insisted that he was
wasting his time, He asked her to listen to the poetry.
After much coaxing by the sisters, she agreed to listen,
but she elosed her eyes to indicate boredom, and she was
very oritical of the poetry, The twins, on the other hand,
were guite charmed by the poetry snd comrlimented Julio's
exgellent reading as well as Maerino's supsrb postry, They
ware very gracious in bidding him goed-bye.

Because of his despondency at not being able to
reconcile himself te als wife, Maerino killed himself, To
show hils concern, Julioc made several calls on the widow and
her sisters. Julio was impressed by the beautiful young
ladies, who were so much alike it seemed that one was the
mirrored reflectlion of the other. Mils cook, Fefia, sensed
the attraction, One day she suggested to Julic that he
marry ona of the girls, He agreed that 1t Wwas a good ides
and asked whiech one sho would have him marry, Pefila answered
that 1t should be the one he liked best, He answered that
he liked them egually. Fefia asked if shs should toss s
coin, Semper said that If it landsd heads, he would marry
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Angelita, if tails, 1t would be Fernmandita. The toss was
made; and, according to the coin, Angelita was to be his
wife, He ordered Pefia toc write a poem declaring his inten~
tions,

At firet he had thought this idea was only 8 joke,
but it occurred to him that perhaps it was rather sensible,
The next morning when Pefia brought bhim a letter writtean in
verse, he tore it up and wrote his own, After sending tha
letter, he worried about what the twins might think of him,
He followed his letter with a visit, Fermandita greeted him,.
He was very much embarrassed and wanted to confess that ne
loved the sisters equally and had made his decisicn to marry
Angelita only after tossing a coln, but he refreined, Since
the giris were oo fond of sach other, Julic agreed mnot to
separate them but to let Fermandita live with them after
they were married., Wherever Julio and his wife were seen,
there aleso was Fernandita. When he bought a gift for
Angelita, he bought an ldentiecel one for Fermandita., Fever-
theless, Angelita never showed any signs of jealousy.

A year after her marrlage, Angelita suddenly became
111 and died, Jullo and Fernsndita were very much grieved,
Fernandita continued te stay at the house and care for Julio
until Rosario wrote a scathing letter denouncing Pernandita
for staying in the same houss with her brother-in-law alter
her sister's death, The two were saddened to think of
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parting, but Fermandita made arrangements to stay with an
aunt until she could find permanent housing. On the day
that Fernandita was to leave, she and Julio went to the
Bombilla for a day of pleasure, but both of them were unhappy
because they knew they were golng to be very lonely without
each other. As the time approached for them to part, Jullo
asked Fernandita to marry him, She accepted, and a few
months later they were married. Jullo said that his two
wlves were sc simllar that they were one wife and that he
had never been a widower at all, He claimed that he had been
married twice by law only, for actually to him it was the
same wife., Fernandlta replaced the heppiness that he had
lost when Angelita diled,

The leading character of La aldea perdida was a young
lady who was the viectim of a tragedy. Her early life was
very happy in the small village wherse she lived with her
foster parents, who were very kind tc her. Demetrie, as she
waa called, lived for many years without suspecting that her
foster parents, Feliela and Goro, were not hsr true parents,

One day Fepin, a young brother of Demetria's, came
home obviously from a fight, Demetria scolded him and
demended to kmow why he had been fighting., FPepin very
reluctantly admitted that his playmate, Tomés, had insisted
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that Demetrla was not Fepin's own sister but that she was
from the orphanage.,

Demetria thought about this remark, for people had
teunted her before in the same manner. She wandered to the
city fountain as she thought about it. She cried a bit
while reflectinz. As she was returning home, Felicis met
her and asked her why she had been erying., After much coax-
ing, she related what Fepln had told her., Fellcla was
greatly shocked and tried to console her,

Demetriats swestheart was a very fine lad who lived
nearby. Demetrla was afrald that if Nolo, the sweetheart,
discovered that she was an orphan he would not wish to marry
her, At mass she prayed to the Virgin Mary for help.
Suddenly, as if in answer to her prayer, this thought
entered her mind: "Aﬁtes que llegue a descubrirlo, dejaré
la casa y me iré a servir a un amo en Oviedo o Gij6n.'21
Eventually she dild arrive in Cviedo but under different cir-
cumstances from those she had planned,

Demetris and Flora, a friend, were accustomed to go
to the river to do the wash, On one such occasion Demetria
grew silent and serious. Flore asked her what was wrong,
and she confided in Flora her fears that she was an orphan.

21Anmando Palaclic Valdés,Z Cbrsas completas, Tomo I

(Medrid: M. Agullar, 1948), p. 1061.
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Plora tried to comfort her by suggesting that perhaps she was
not an orphan but the child of a nobleman who had left her
in the care of Goro and Felleila., Flora then confided to
Demetria that she was in simllar circumstances, that she,
too, was living with foster parents, It was true. Flora
was the daughter of a nobleman, don F8lix Cantalicio Ramiresz
del Valle, and a servant, Although he had never publicly
eclaimed her, he always savw thet she was provided for,

One day dofia Beatriz, the real mother of Demetria,
arrived at the home of Felleia and Goro and demanded to take
Demetrialaway with her. It was not until Demetria met dofia
Beatriz that Felicla confessed that Demetria's susplcions
had been true, she was not really the daughter of Felicila
and Goro,

Upon being assured that she was a foster chllgd,
Demetria went to the village fountain, as was her custom
when she needed to meditate. There she met her very close
friend, Telva, who sensed that something was wrong and
coaxed Demetris to confide in her, but Demetria refused.
Telva rushed to Felicia and, seeing s strange woman, asked
if there had been a misfortune, Felicila was too unhappy to
explain, but Goro told her that the lady hed come to take
Demetria away.

In the next few days there was a filesta. Nolo went

in hopes of seeing Demetria. He searched in vain for her.



52
Finally another young man, Celso, told Nole the story of the
strange woman who had ecome to take Demetria toc Oviedo to
moke a lady of her,

Holo's next meeting with Demetria was by chance.
Demetria wes on her way to bid farewell to her friend Flora.,
The two, Demetria and Nolo, greetod each other very awkwardly;
nelther knew what to say., Demetria took the initiative and
told Nolo how sad she was to leave, He felt that he would
no longer be worthy of her since she was to become a lady.
She assured him that she would much rather stay in the
village among the common people and that she would never
forget him or feel superior to him. As a parting token,
Holo gave her a bouquet of carnaticns to place at the feet
of the Virgin when she passed the church and entered to
pray. Others in the village tried to act joyful that Demetria
was to have a fine education and become a lady, but Demetria
was not successful In masking her feelings, She was quite
cendid in manifesting her sorrow,

Dofia Beatrlz sent Demetria tc a convent in Oviedo,
where she was very unhappy. She was ocut off entirely from
her happy peasant 1ife and from those whom she had known.
This added to her discontent., She did manage to contact her
foster parenys by mail. In sach letter she expressed mcre
unhappiness., She never forgot to send her regards to Holo.
Eolo made a habit of visiting with Feliciz and Goro and
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reminiscing about the time during which Demetrla was with
them,

Demetris finished her studies at the convent and went
tc live with her mother and with her sunt Rafsela. Folo
knew the address at whieh she was living and declded to try
to find her. He left his home one day on the pretext of
going to buy a horse and set out to find Demetria. When he
arrived at her mother's great house, he lost his nerve,
thinking that a fine lady ecould not love a peasant lad.
Later his courage returned, and he thought that if he could
not eall on her as her sultor, he could visit her as a
friend and carry to her the good wishes of her foster parents.

Demetrie wes overjoyed when she heard him singing a
femiliar song, At first she could searcely believe that she
had heard him, but her hopes were verified when she actually
saw him, —

When Nolo talked to her and discovered how unhappy
she was in her new enviromment, he suggested that she go
away with him, She consented, He suggested that they start
the following morning, but she insisted on starting that
very night. She had plamned to go to a dance tﬁnt evening
with Rafaela. She told him to walt for her at the dance and
she would try to leave with him at about ten o'clock.

Nolo walted several hours later than the time agreed

upon, but he was no more lmpatient than Demetria, who was
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under such close survelllance that she could not escape,
About midnight she complained that one shoe was hurting her
foot. She went to get her coat, and a servant offered to
accompany her home, She told the servant that it was not
necessary. As she left the bullding, she was joined by
Nelo, who took her to his horse. They mounted and spent a
long, tiresome jourmey, arriving eventually at Canzana,
Demetria's formsr home.

On the way home Nolo informed Demetria of the news
that she had missed during her absence, He told her that
don F8lix had acknowledged that Flora was his daughter.

This meant thet Flora would become the helr to his wealth,
Demetria was very hesppy sbout this, However, some of the
changes that had taken place during her absence were not so
favorable. MNines were being developed in the vieinity.
This was rather distasteful to the villagers, for they
objJected to the tyre of people who lived near mines, Crime
wes increasing,

Demetria was uneasy, for wherever she went she
encountered the uneouth people who worked at the minss, The
most formidable of these was Plutén, an ugly monster who
seemed more beast than man., She told Holo that after they
were married she wanted to move away, but Nolo told her that
it would do no good, because all of the neighboring towns

were also bsing overrun by miners. Besides Goro was growing
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old, =nd the couple had planned to live with him to help him
with his work.

One day Demetrla was going on an errand past the mine,
She stopped for a while to enjoy the woods where she and her
friends had spent so many carefree hours, She began singing.
She was startled when suddenly she saw Plutdn nearby. He
asgked her to continue her singing, but she sald that she no
longer felt llke singing. He saild that if she did not do
as he sald he would kill her, and he flashed his scythe
menacingly at her. He came closer to her; she stumbled back-
ward into the depth of the mine, Plutén wes still in pursuit.
She grabbed the seythe and struck him. Believing him to be
dead, she wanderod in the mine until she was lost. Holo and

her foster parents searched for her for a long time, After

extensive hunting without finding a trace of her, they
suspected that she might have returned to the home from
whieh she had fled with Noleo. Finally Nolo learned that she
and Plutdédn had been seen near the mine. He searched the
vieinity still more thoroughly until at la st he found her.
It was & long time before Demetria told the truth of
the ineldent, because she feared being tried for the slaylng
of Flutén, During this time Nolo mistrusted her. After she
learned that she had only wounded FPlutén, she told the

entire story to Nolo. 35he and Nolo were married.
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Constantly the situation with the miners was becoming
worse, The miners were mistreating the villagers, and the
villagers were seeking revenge. At festival time a group
of miners invaded the village, destroying at will. Plutén
was in the group. When he saw Demetris alone, he recognized
tha opportunity to avenge his marrow eseape in the mins,
While Folo was battling with other miners, Plutbm killed
Demetria,

To some 1t may appear that the exploiting of people
and resources is the begimnning of civilization, but Falacio
Valdés believed that it is an example of barbarism, for his
last words in the book are as follows: "[Yo os digo gue
ehora comlenza la barbariel"?2 Demetria was a symbol; even
her name comes from Demeter, goddess of fruitfulness. At
the first of the novel she represented the carefree happi-
ness of a peasant vlillage. At the last she represented the
tragedy and sorrow that come when a group of people are
foreed to undergo a change effected because of the greed for
wealth.

A favorite device of Fslaclo Valdés was a romantic
triangle involving two sisters., In additiom to Marta y
Marlg and A cara o gruz, El cuarto poder uscs the same situ-

atioen, but the outcome of the novel is quite different. The

221b1d., p. 1155,
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suitor, Gonzalo, makes a choice of wife that leaves the
reader dissatisfied and that leads to his own destruction.

Cecilia de Belinehdn, the oldest daughter of a wealthy
e¢od merchant, was the first novie of Gonzalo. The two had
known each other since childhood, for they hzd lived all of
their lives in Sarrib, a small village bordering the Bay of
Biscay. Gonzalo was a serlous and timid youth who, like
most of his neighbors, became a sallor, He was not interested
In girls until one day when he celled on the sefior de
Belinchén., The merchant's daughter, Cecilia, greeted him.
She was busy dolng the familly ironing, but she conversed with
him while he walted to see her father. Gonzalo was attracted
tc her because she seemed sc pleasant.

Soon afterward Gonzalo's ship sailed to England,

They corresponded while he was away. Although Cecilia was
careful not to be too forward in her letters, Gonzalo felt
that he was falling in love with her, After thinking feor a
long time sbout the matter, Gonzalo mustered enough courage
to write tc Cecilia and ask her to marry him, After he had
sent the letter, he feared that Cecllia might refuse him,
Cecilia was not one to rush into a deecision. She considered
the feelings of her family and deliberated with them before
accepting the proposal. It waa planned that they should be

married soon after Gonzalo's return to Spain.
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During Gonzalo's months away, Cecilia's younger and
more beautiful sister, Ventura, developed intoc & young lady.
She knew that she was more attractive than her older sister
and could not resist using her charms to attract Gonzalo,
Gonzaleo was a very nalve young man and easily succumbed to
her winsome weys.

Gradually Gonzalo lost interest in the plain Cecilia,
but he felt that his honor would not let him break his
promise to her, so he sald nothing about his feelings, and
plans for the wedding proceeded. The family worked happilly
in joyful anticlpation of the occesion. Even Venturs helped
with the necessary preparations, although she 4id not intend
for her sister to marry the handseme sailor.

Gonzalo was falling deeper in love with Ventura, and
he struggled inwardly about how to sélve his problem, He
could not forece himself to break Cecilia's heart., Neither
could he give up Ventura. The more flippant Ventura agreed
to be the one to break the news %o her parents.

Dofia Paula, the mother of the girls, wes always in
poor health, and when Ventura asked for her consent to marry
Gonzalo, she fell seriously ill. While dofla Paule was bed-
fast, she required the continuous attention of the family.
Her most faithful attendant was Cecilia, always willing to
do what she could to make life pleasant for others, It was

while Cecilla was alons with her mother that Paula, overcoms
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with grief, told Cecilia thaet the wedding might not take
place as planned, for she feared that Gonzalo was not
constant in his love. Dofia Faula was little comfort to
Cecilia; on the other hand, Cecilia comforted her mother by
telling her that 1t was better to find cut before she was
married that he did not love her than te find out afterward,
Paula continued and told Cecilia that Gonzalo was in love
with Ventura and wanted to msrry her., Cecllia remsined
sllent, but later, when Faula promised that she would not
consent to the marriage without first having the blessing of
Cecilia, Cecilia unselfishly gave 1t.

Ventura and Gonzalo were married and 1ived at &n estate
of Ventura's parents originally intended for Cecilia and
Gonzalo., Contrary to what one might expect, Cecillae showed
no bitterness toward either her siater or her former lover.
When a crisis arose, Cecilia was there to offer what help
Was necessary. When Gonzalo lay sick in bed suffering from
an infection, Ventura geve him & minismum of attention. When
there were visitors to see him, she was present and made a
display of being concerned; but when he was alone and needed
companionship, she found excuses for leaving him alone.
Caring for him wes distasteful to her., It was Csellia who
tirelessly waited on him, She was at his side carrying out
his commands and anticipating his needs, When Oonzalo com-

plained of Ventura's inattention, Cecilia did not criticilze
her sistar but tried to justify her behavior.
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Gonzalo admired Ceellis and reslized that she would
be a good wife. One of Gonzalo's friends felt that he could
iove Cecllia, and Gonzalo encouraged her to become better
acquainted with him, but Cecilia had no intention of
encouraging & sultor, for she did not wish to marry anyone.

When a child was born to the couple, Cecilia moved to
their home to care for the mother and baby, The child was
not permitted %o disturb Ventura at all. The beby slept at
night in Cecilia's room, As she grew, she was reared by
Cecilia,

Ventura did not take her household dutles seriously.
With her sister there to look after matters, Ventura spent
her time caring for herself snd staying beautiful. She
assumed practlcally no responsibility.

The father of the girls, don Rosendo, had for a long
time been actlve in pelitics and had met many important
people. When a duke wvisited the provinee in which they
lived, the logleel place for him to be a guest was the home
of the Belinehbns. At a dimnmeyr the duke sat near Ventura.
Although the duke was merely being pclite, Vemtura thought
that he peld her a great deal of attention. At first the
duke had scarcely notlced her, but she became so flirtatious
that eventually he did fall in love with her.

Since the duke's visit lasted for a considerable
length of time, the family began tco see the scandal that was
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occurring. Cecilia was too kind to say anything to Gonzalo;
but when dofia Faula discovered hor younger daughter's
behavior, she ordered ths duke to leave the house. The
situation wes somewhat aewkward, for it was due to the duke's
influence that Gonzalo had become alcalde.

Although he was no longer a welcome guest at the
Belinchén household, the duke returned to see Ventura. In
order to spare her brother-in-law's feelings, and to exon-
erate hér sister, Cecilia led Gonzalo to believe that it was
shs who was the mistress of the duke, Gonzalo lecarned the
entire truth when he received a note from the duke challenging
him to a duel. In the course of the duel, the duke's bullet
seretched Gonzalot's cnesek, The enraged Gonzalo threw himself
on the duke and nearly killed him with his bare hands., The
duke spent a long time in recovering. Ventura's parents,
angry because of the disgrace she had brought the family,
committed her to a convent.

After the duke recovered, Ventura escaped from the
eonvent and ran away with the duke, This wss tco much for
the semsitive Gonzalo to bear, because he was still very
mack in love with bhis wife., He could no longer face his
problems, He went down to the sea that he knew so well,
tied an anchor to his neck, and drowned himself.

As soon as Ventura saw her dead husband, she became

emofional and fainted. Cecilla, as usual, took her grief



62
quietly. She immedistely went ahead with the practical
affairs of preparing the house for Gonzalo's body. The

author praised her self—contr01:23
Cecilia, por unc de esos esfuerzos herbicos gue
estaba avezada a hacer sobre su alma y su cuerpo,
supo encerrar su pena en el fondo del corazdn.
Undoubtedly Cecilis loved Gonzalo deeply, but she was so
selfless that she did nothing to stand In the way of his
happiness even though it meant that she must lose him,

@uite the opposite of her kind, considerate siater
was Ventura. Cbviously Gonzalo was impractical in deciding
whieh of the two sisters should be his wife, Ventura was a
poor manager and & worse mother, but she had an irresistible
charm that attracted men, She was guite demonstrative.
This trait flattered the timid Gonzalo.

Ventura was vain and seemed to enjoy the misery she
caused her devoted lover and husband, When they were first
married, she was selfish and did not want Gonzalo to leave
her long enough to go on a hunting trip; but when Gonzalo
was 111, she could not be bothered by taking care of him,

Gonzalo realized that he was being mistreated, and
even when Ventura was unfaithful to him, he.could not bring
himself to hate her although loving her meant for him a

brcken heart.

23Ib1d., r. 663.
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Doubtless Ventura was satisfled with herself for being
the cause of =z duel, She llked being the center cf atten-
tion even though she had to break moral and soeclal laws to
accomplish it. Nevertheless she displayed more grief at
losing Gonzalo than did her devoted sister. Perhsps she was
truly grieved but not so much for Gonzalo, for whom she had
never shown any consideration while he was living, but
rather she was sorry for herself for having lost an admirer,

Maybe Ventura's selfishmness can be justified to a
cortain extent, Her sister always stepped aside and gave
in tc the desires of Ventura so that she had no opportunity
to show her sister any consideration, Cecilia tock all the
responsibllity of Ventura's home 85 that Ventura did not
feel the effects of her neglect, Perhaps her temperament
would have been different if she had not been so sheltered,

In this story we find one of the most vivid contrasts
posslble between two women, The one was always proper and
kind, the other unconcermed sbout propriety, doing whatever
pleased her at the moment,

Another novel set iIn the Asturias is Sinfonis pastoral.
The leading lady in this story 1s Angelina Guir8s., The
author desecribed her in & charming Hnysah

2y
Armando Palaclo Vald8as, Sinfonla gastogg; {¥adrid;
Libreria de Vietoriano Sufirez, 1931,, pe 1
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Era Angelina de medlana estatura, extremadamente
delgada; sus ojos, velados por largns pestafias,
rodeados por un leve circulo azulado, tenian oxpre:i&n
de quietud y melancolia, que contrastaba con lea viveza,
v afin podria decirse violencla de sus ademanes,
The varied experiences of Angelina as she was taken from
e¢ity life to live near the sea make her an interesting young
lady.

Her father, Antonic Quirbs, was born intc a poor family.
He was encouraged by the family to leave Spain and seek a
fortane in the new world., After he became wealthy, he
returned to Spain, He met and married a lovely girl who
bore him a beautiful daughter. His wife died when the
daughter was only a child, Antonioc had few interests besides
his daughter, Angelina, and he pampered her considerably,

When Angelina became a young lady, she suffered from
ill health, Her father discovered that there was only one
thing that could restore her health and that was to take her
away from Madrld and into the open air,

Antonlo had a brother living in the Asturias who was
of modest financizl means, Antonio told the brother, Juan
QuirSs, that he had lost his money, and he asked Juan to act
as guardian to Angelina. Juan and his wife, Griselda,
willingly accepted the girl and treated her as their own.

At first she was unhappy in the country. As scon as

she arrived she wrote two letters, one to her father and one
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to her fiancé, Gustavo Manrigue. In each letter she sxpressed
dlscontent. Jusn had two ehildren of his own, Carmela and
Telesforo, who were nsar Angelina's age., As Angelina became
better acquainted with her cousins, she grew to like pastoral
1life.

Teleafore fell in love with Angelina, and matters
became complicated when her flancd went to the Asturlas to
find her. She hed been disappointed in Gustavo because he
had never answered her letter. When he found her, he
explained that he had never received the letter because he,
too, had been away from Madrid. The explenation satisfied
Angelins 6 and she forgave Gustavo.

Angelina and her foster family one day recelved a
letter from Antonic informing them that Antonlo had nct lost
his money. In the letter he explained his plan for reatoring
Angelina's health. He generously rewarded Juan and told
Angelina that she was heir to a large fortune.

Telesforo and a money lender were discuszsing Angelina's
wealth when Gustavo Manrilgue epproached, Gustavo said that
he had forgotten one of his gloves and sent Telesforc to get
it. Telesforo refused, and Gustavo struck Mm in the face
with a whip, Telesforo jumped upon Gustavo and seriously
wounded him, Then Telesaforo fled from the vicinity.

When Angelina heard of the quarrel, she was torn

between twe allegiances, After hearing the details and
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pondering over the situation, she decided to write a letter
to Guatave telling him thst they were never really meant for
each other, She wrcte a letter also to Telesforo declaring
her love for him and asking him to return. Teleaforo
hastened home, and he and Angelina made plans to marry soon.

Her father, who had been living in Cuba, came to take
Angelina back to Madrid, She told him that she had rejected
Gustavo, Ho was delighted at the news, but when she announced
her plans tc marry Telesforo, he was cutraged at the ldea of
her marrying a common peasant lad., She stood firm in her
declsion, srguing that only thrcugh a peasant's life had she
found health and happiness,

The young, marriageable women in the novels of
Palacic Valdés are nearly slways very important to the nlot
of the novels in which they are found, beczuse he was en
author who often used the romantiec plet, The elimax of
these stories 1s usually the marriage of the leading feminine
character. In A cara o erus the first eclimax is Julio
Samper's marriage to Angelita., After her death, hils marriage
to Fernandita iz = second climax, The second marrisge iz the
one that leaves the reader satisfied with tle ending,

Another novel with a happy ending is Marta y Marla.
After her silster had made a decision to devote her life to

formal religion, Marts merried the rejected suitor. The
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conclusion is quilte satisfactory, for Marts is =2 much more
suitable wife than Harla.

The most important characters in josé are the title
charscter and his sweetheart, Elisa. This story ends guite
happily with the promlse that the two will soon be married,
Elisa rlays a2 prominent role throughout the story in the
struggle between Josd end her mother,

Maximina 1s the protagonist in twe novels, Riverita
and Maximina. The plots of both novels depend on her, The
first deals wlth Miguel's meeting her and their courtsaip.

It is & pleasant human-interest story, which deals with
bringing Maximina from a 1ife of poverty to marriage with a
successful young journslist. The second novel employs the
same characters and continues the story after thelr marriage.
Although 1t 1s not strictly a tragedy, the story ends with

the sad event of Maximina's death. These two stcries parallel
Palaclec Valdéa' own courtship and marriage.

Demetria is important to the plet of La aldes perdida,
for the happiness and the misery of the village follow the
pattern of Demetria's fortuns, As the village was overrun
by miners, Demetria was kllled by the most evil of the
miners,

Cecllia and Ventura were also involved in e tragedy,
but the death occurrsd not to them but to their suitor, who

became Ventura's husband, The two girls form a contrast that
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gives El cuartc poder its cclor. The gentle Cecilia lost her
lover to the thoughtless Ventura, who drove her devoted
husband to suileide. Like the other woman of this chapter,
these two crested the ploct for the stery.

In Sinfonia pastoral he used Angelina to support ais
ergument that country life is superior te 1living in the
clty.

As was typical of Palaclo Valdfs, he depleted among
the marriageable women those from every walk of life and of
every emotional nature. Each one responds to her problems
in e manner different from the cthers. Except for the twins,
ne two are evern similar, This treatment of individuals In
his storles is quite characteristic of Pslaclo Valdés,



CHAPTER V

WOMEN OF THE HOME

In La slegria del Cepitfén Ribot the wife of Emilio
Marti was @& young matron who charmed the captain of & seiling

vessel, the Urano, The captain was the Capitdn Ribot. An
act of heroism brought him to the attentlion of the young
lady.

One time when the captain was eating at his favorite
inn in Valencia, he heard someone crying for help., He
immediately laeft the table and sew a lady struggling in the
water, He rescued her and did not consider the incident
especlally noteworthy, He noticed the one who had been
sunmoning help. She was Cristina, the duughter of the drowning
woman,

Cristina showered the captaim with gretitude for what
he had done. They fell into conversation and learned about
each other's backgrounds, Actually the captain had no c¢lose
family; Cristina said that her husband was Emilic Marti, one
of the owners of a shipping company. Cristina was nct beauti-
ful, but she was quite personable, and the daptaim felt very
much st ease talking to her,

Cristina had an umnmarried cousin, Isabel. The captain
showed her a great deal of attention, but he never was sin-

cere. He could not forget Cristina., When he was away from
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Valencia, he thought of her constantly. When he returned,
he frequented the home of the Marti's, He and Emilio became
very close friends. Most of his assoclates began to notice
how much the captaln admired Cristina, but the trusting
Emilio suspected nothing.

The captain was npot Cristina's only admirer. There
was Castell, who was the Joint owner of the shipping company
with Emllio. He was quite a contrast to the simple Emilio.
He was handasome, suave, and debonair., The captaln mis-
trusted him and with good reason. The captain's thoughts
about Castell wers:Zl

Ya no podia dudar de gque festejaba a Cristina y

también de que habia advertido el amor que yo sentia

por ella,
Because Castell hed guessed that the captain was in love with
Cristina, he took advantage of the opportunity to place the
consequences of his gullt on someone else,

Cne night Isabel and Ribot came accidentally upon
Cestell and Cristlina and overheard thelr conversatlon.
Cristina told Castell that thelr affair mmst stop. Castell
took the news bitterly. At this polint Ribot made himself
known and told Castell that he had known for & long tlime of

the romance. Castell, angry at Ribot, went to Emilio and

24
Armando Palecio Valdés, La alegria del Gagiggg
Ribot (Madrid: Libreria general de Victorianc S 1920),

p. 130.
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told him that the captain was in love with Cristina. Emilio
approached Ribot and told him to leave forever, Ribot was
sad, but he refrained from telling Emilio the truth.

Bmilio became a victim of tuberculosis, His illness
soon depleted the family funds, Before he dled, Emilio
ealled Ribot to his side, for by then he had learned the
truth about Cristina and Castell., Emilio died leaving the
family in a bad finencial state. Cristina had to sell the
estate to pay debts. As a surprise for her birthday, Ribot
bought back the estate and furniture. He remained in Valencia
and continued his friendship with Cristina, He was the god-
father of Cristina's daughter, who gave the captain many
hours of hapniness, The captain took a great deal of
rleasure in looking after the young widow and her daughter
and seeing that they were well provided for, but he never
did marry the widow of his good friend.

Clementina in La Espuma was the daughter of a wealthy
duke. She was a pampered young lady., Her mother hzad dled,
and the duke had remarrled. The stepmother was gquite fond
of Clementina, who was very beautiful, Wherever Clementina
went, her arpearance attracted attentlion., Barly in the

story, she was described as followss 25

25 prmando Falaelo Vald&s, Cbras completas, Tomo II
(Madrid: M. Aguilar, 1948), p. 175.
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Nadie podia mirarle sin sentirse poseido de admireeibn,

més afin que por su lujosc arreo, por la belleza severa

de su rostro y la gallardia de la figura.
Every detail of her dress wass as admirable as she herself was,
Therefore 1t was not unusual that she had many male admirers,
There was cne very young man whom she notlced that followed
ber and watched her more than most did.

She became very curious about the youth. He was con-
slderably younger than she was, so it seemed unusual that he
should have a romantic interest in her, She inquired about
the youth and discovered where he lived., She called on him
and told him that she was already married to Tomls Osorio.

She asked him why he persisted in following her.

Then Raimundo told her the story of his life., He was
very brillient and was pursuing scientific studles., His
father, who had been a scientist, died before Ralmundo was
old enough to remember him, Recently Raimundot's mother had
died of pmeumonia. Raimundo missed her very much, for he had
besn very close to his mother, Ralmundo hsd a younger sister,
but he had always been his mother's favorite, for he resembled
his deceased father, Raimundo confessed that he followed
Clementina because she reminded him of his mother. After
hearing the story, Clementina's attitude was mollified, and
she encouraged his friendship, :

In Clementina's family changes were taking place. The
duke lost his money and became dependent on his wealthy wife,
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dofia Carmen, When Carmen died, the duke expected to recelve
her wealth, but to his disappointment, she left her estate
to Clementina., This rendered the duke financially dependent
on Clementina and Tomds, who trled to econtrol the duke
entirely. They were qulte shocked and angered when the duke
chose a young lady of low soeial level to take charge of his
household. She and Clementina became bitter enemles., Finally
the old duke was declared of unsound mind,

After Clementina's visit to him, Raimundo hed continued
to see her, He fell very mmch in love with her even though
he was fully aware that she was already married. The two
met secretly until one night Clementina told Raimundo that
the affair had to cease., Raimundo's heart was broken, He
begged her to continue their meetings. As a parting cere-
mony, she suggested that together they burn his love letters
to her. They went to the kitchen to burn them, but they
agreed that it would be more appropriate to take them to the
forest and burn them in the open ailr. She had a cocach walt-
ing; they rode into the ecountry, burned the letters, and
rode back, Clementina insisted that Raimundo should find a
wife and forget their romance, but Raimundo remained incon-
solable., As they parted, she said that they should always
be friends and invited him to be a guest often at her house,

His only answer was "Adids.,"
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Clementina portrayed a typical member of the
fashionable set. Palaclc Valdés depicted in this story the
social 1ife of some of the wealthy class of nineteenth-
century Madrid. They placed a great deal of emphasis on
money and appearance, but their morals were often very low.

A housewife who stayed in the background of the novel
but who was lmportant to the plot was dofia Rosario of A cars
o ecruz, She was the sister of the twins who were the two
wives of Julic Samper,

Dofia Rosario was the agent that brought together
Julio and her two sisters, She was a very temperamental
wife, She ruled her husband's every activity. Resario and
her husband, Macrino, lived next dcor to Samper, Julic
Semper end hls neighbor wers very close friends, and Julie
wented his friend to accompany him on some of his pleasure
excursions, It was a rare occasion, however, when Macrino's
wife allowed him to go any place,

After one outing on which Macrino had accompanied
Julio, Rosario had Macrino declared insane. She then went
to live at the home of her younger sisters, When Maecrino
was released from the asylum, Rosario refused to return to
him, Maecrino asked Julio to go to the home of the sisters
and plead for Rosario to return to him, It was on this
occasion that Julio met the delightful sisters, Angelita and
Fernandita, who became his first and second wives respectively.
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It was obvious to Julio that Rosaric was also unpleasant
around her sisters. Her asisters complained that she was hard
to get along with,

Maerino's unhappy situation led te many humorous
incidents in the story. For example, Julio was once telling
Macrino abcut the inereasing power of women in politiecs and
business in America and England, Maerino was shocked, but
at the seme time he allowed his wife to dominate him com-
pletely. She was sc careful in not asllowing him to carry
money that it sometimes led to embarrassing situations. One
incident was releted early in the ltory:26

Decian que dofia Rosario ataba tan corto a don Macrino

en cuestidn de dinero, que no le daba mfs gue una peseta
cuando iba a Madrid; P tal modo, que el pobre hombre,
cierto dis, a la wvuelta, no pudo pagar el tranvia a unas
sefioras veclinas,

Although the sltuation often led to humor, his
despondency eventually caused the tragedy of the novel,
Because Macrino failed in his efforts to bring his wife back
to him, he committed sulcide. Even after hearing the sad
news of her husband's death, Rosarlc remained adamant and
did not repent of her evil disposition. Rosario was unigue
emong the women featured by Palaclo Valdés in thst one could

say that she possessed no characteristiecs that could be

26Armando Palaclo ValdSs, A cara o cruz (Madrid:

Editorial pueyo, 1929), p. 26,
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called charming, Yet her husband was quite devoted to her
and was very lonely without ner,

The final woman to be discussed was drawn from an
actual person. She was the mother of Palacio Valdés, who, of
course, really existed almost ss she was deplcted in Ls
novela de un novellsta. However, since this book is listed
es & novel, it 1s justifisble to mention the mother since
she plays & major role in the book. In this novel, which
1s the most autoblographiecal of 211 of his novels, the author
rlays the chief part; the supporting characters are people
important to his early lifae.

The woman who had the most influence on young Armando's
1ife was naturally his mother. Although Palacio Valdés was
very fond of his mother, he admitted that she was firm in
dealing with him, It was she, not his father, who was the
one who most often decided upon and administered punishment,
His father usually sympathized with him and was less severe,

Thils novel is the fietionalized story of the first
seventeen years of ralacio Vald8s' life, This was e very
happy time In hils 1ife. He spent part of it on the seashore
and part of it in the mountains. He was not forced to study
excessively. Although his mother was rather well educated,
she did not insist thet Armando spend a great deal of time
on his studies, In fact Armando regretted that his early
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bocks and interests were not so cultural as they might have
been.,

Armando studled sufficiently to finish his early
schooling and took his examination to enter law practice.

He passed the examinations and loecated in Madrid. He was
very unhappy at first in the large city. He felt as 1f he
were Adem being expelled from Eden, He sspecially missed
his mother, He had been very casual in taking leave of his
father, but his farewell tc his mother was much more senti-
mental,

In the novel she remained rather close in personality
to his mother in real l1life. She was certainly a lady. Her
poor health made 1t necessary for her to be very inactive.
She did not participate in many publiec activities but spent
most of her 1ife quietly at home, Her death occurred shortly
after Armando had gone to Madrid,

This chspter, "Women of the Home," treats a few of the
background women and some of those who were maln characters
in novels.

In La espuma Clementina, although she was married, was
involved in a romance, She portrayed a typical young lady
of her scelal class, She was perhaps a bit more conscien-
tious than most,

Another matron who was romantically involved was

Cristine, the 1dol of the Captain Ribot., She lived in
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Valencia, but she dld not necessarily typify ladies of her
locale as did Clementina. Cristina served the purpose of
being the constant sub ject of the captain's thoughts. This
was more important tc the novel than local color., Clementina
and Cristins were both young matrons, bﬁt their personclities
were guite different., Clementine had social ambition;
Cristina was happy leading a rather simple 1life even though
her husband was financielly sueccessful before his illness,

Serving quite a different purpose from the two
previously mentioned women was dofia Rosaric. She furnished
the background for the main thread of the narrative of A
cara o crus, She managed to bring the main characters
together so that the novel might progress. She added the
lighter side to the story sometimes, but at one point sie
caused the most unfortunmate incident in the story. Her
bitter disposition csused her husband's deasth.

Another lady who stayed in the background was the
mother of Palaclo Valdds., He mentioned her only casually,
and yet her Influence on his 1life in the novel and in reality
iz undeniable.

The women of the home serve an important purpose in
the storles of Palacio Valdfs, Whether they occur in the

background or are main characters, they are often necessary

to the theme of the novel, adding interest and complications,



CHAPTER VI
CONCLUSIONS

The women in the novels of Palacio Valdés are not
prototypes except the twins of A cars o cruz, and here it is
their simllarity that causes them to be unigue. Some of
them, for example Clementina of La espuma and Demetria of
La aldea perdida, represent something outside of the novel,
Clementina portrays the ladies cf her social class; Demetria
personifies the tragedy of industrialization. Still each of
these women has her own unmistakable personality.

It is difficult to determine exactly what kind of
woman Palacio Valdés favored. According to Marta y Marias
it mey be assumed that he doubted the sincerity of some who
openly dedicated their lives to religion. However, in Santa
Rogelia he showed the value of a nun truly devoted to her
task, for it is due to the influence of an admirable nun
that Rogella turned from her life sc free from religion to
a sacrificlal life in crder to set her conscience at ease,

It 1is impossible to deseribe every woman {rom every
novel of this greal master, but these selected from his
ma jor novela are representative of his women., There weas
not enough characterization of some of the minor characters

to zive them a place in this study., He drew from every
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walk of 1life, from the wealthy to the common people. He
wrote with equal suthority about women of various classes,

Like most novels, hils storles are often concernsd
with love, but the nplots are not trite. Some of the romances
end happily; ethers end in sorrow. His plots are as diverse
as his women, Through all of his storles, tragic or hampy,
he keeps his optimistic attitude.

In conclusion it may be said that the women in the
novels of FPalacic Valdés had these things in common: they
were all Spanish, and all of them lived during the nineteenth
century. They were all from rogioﬁs familiasr to FPalaclo
Vald8s, meny from his unative Asturias, and some from the
more scphisticated larger cities, The author was bound
strictly by his rule of never writing about events or people
unfamilisr to him. Irn this sense the women were limited,
but there iz no monotony in his novels, Rather each story
unfolds an entirely different situation, and except for
Riverita and Maximina,K entirely different characters, among
which women play a major role, Yet hiz storles all show
evidence of his preferences, For example, he preferred rural
to city life. He favored the simple 1ife over a complex
society. His stories show an attitude of optimism. Even
the padre Gil of La fe, who was unjustly accused by a woman,
did not think 1ife was futile. This is typical of the view

of Falaclo Valdés. He belileved that even though a person
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might be scorned by soelety, he still had his faith in something
greater to keep his outlook chesrful. This characteristie
of optimism is the gquelity found in most of the writing of
Falaclo Valdés, and his women characters are inatrumental in
developing the thougnt.
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